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Jones, Brad A., EMNRD

From: Jones, Brad A., EMNRD
Sent: Thursday, December 24, 2020 10:55 AM
To: Shacie Murray
Cc: Ryan Merrion; Ryan Davis; 'Philana Thompson'
Subject: RE: [EXT] URGENT Permit NM1-9-0 request for closure of Treatment Zone
Attachments: 2020 1224 Agua Moss NM1-009 TZ Closure Request Denial signed.pdf

Ms. Murray, 
 
Please see the attached OCD response to Agua Moss request and demonstration for closure of the treatment 
zone for the entire landfarm under permit NM-1-009.. If you have any questions regarding this matter, please do 
not hesitate to contact me.  
 
Sincerely,  
 
Brad A. Jones 
 
 
Brad A. Jones ● Environmental Scientist Specialist - Advanced 
Environmental Bureau 
EMNRD - Oil Conservation Division 
1220 S. Saint Francis Drive | Santa Fe, New Mexico 87505 
(505) 469-7486 | brad.a.jones@state.nm.us 
http://www.emnrd.state.nm.us/OCD/  
 

From: Philana Thompson <pthompson@merrion.bz>  
Sent: Monday, June 1, 2020 9:26 AM 
To: Jones, Brad A., EMNRD <brad.a.jones@state.nm.us> 
Cc: Ryan Merrion <ryan@merrion.bz>; Ryan Davis <RDavis@merrion.bz>; Shacie Murray <shacie@merrion.bz> 
Subject: [EXT] URGENT Permit NM1‐9‐0 request for closure of Treatment Zone 
 
Brad, 
 
Attached is the request for closure of the treatment zone for permit NM1‐9‐0. A physical copy was sent in the mail 
May 29th, 2020 via - Certified Mail # 70160910000123658537. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Philana 
 
 
‐‐  
Philana Thompson 
HSE & Regulatory Compliance 
Merrion Oil & Gas Corp 
cell 505‐486‐1171 
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Adrienne Sandoval 
Director, Oil Conservation Division 

Michelle Lujan Grisham  
Governor 

 
Sarah Cottrell Propst 
Cabinet Secretary  

 
Todd E. Leahy, JD, PhD 
Deputy Secretary 

 
December 24, 2020 
 
Ms. Shacie Murray 
Agua Moss, LLC 
PO Box 600 
Farmington, New Mexico 87499 
 
 
RE: Treatment Zone Closure Request  
 Agua Moss Surface Waste Management Facility, Permit NM1-009 
 Location:  Section 2, Township 29 North, Range 12 West, NMPM 
 San Juan County, New Mexico 
 
Ms. Murray, 
 
The Oil Conservation Division (OCD) has completed its review of Agua Moss, LLC’s (Agua Moss) 
request, emailed to OCD on June 1, 2020 and dated May 29, 2020 for closure of the treatment zone for 
the entire landfarm under permit NM-1-009.  
 
The OCD has determined the treatment zone assessment is incomplete and hereby denies Agua Moss 
request to approve the closure of the treatment zone in Landfarm Cells #1, #2 North, and #2 South for the 
following reason: 
 
Pursuant to 19.15.36.15.F(5) NMAC, the concentration of constituents listed in Subsections A and B of 
20.6.2.3103 NMAC shall be determined by EPA SW-846 methods 6010B or 6020 or other methods 
approved by the division. If the concentration of those constituents exceed the PQL or background 
concentration, the operator shall either perform a site specific risk assessment using EPA approved 
methods and shall propose closure standards based upon individual site conditions that protect fresh 
water, public health and the environment, which shall be subject to division approval or remove pursuant 
to Paragraph (2) of Subsection G of 19.15.36.15 NMAC. The May 29, 2020 Agua Moss cover letter states 
“All of the evaluated constituent results and lab detection limits are below the NMED Soil Screening 
Level and therefore determined not to be a risk to human health or the environment.” The assessment 
from Rule Engineering LLC, dated May 22, 2020, confirms this by stating in their assessment that “To 
evaluate the risk of these constituents to human health and the environment, the concentrations are 
compared to the New Mexico Environment Department Soil Screening Levels (NMED .SSLs) for 
residential soils per the New Mexico Environment Department Risk Assessment Guidance: for Site 
Investigations and Remediation.” OCD was unable to locate any risk assessment to propose closure 
standards based upon individual site conditions that protect fresh water, as required of 19.15.36.15.F(5) 
NMAC and the approved Closure/Post-Closure Care Plan.  

 
Section 4.4 of the New Mexico Environment Department Risk Assessment Guidance for Site 
Investigations and Remediation, Volume I states “NMED believes that a DAF of 20 for a 0.5 acre source 
area is protective of groundwater in New Mexico. If the default DAF is not representative of conditions at 
a specific site, then it is appropriate to calculate a site-specific DAF based upon available site data.” 
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Section 4.7 further clarifies “Larger source sizes result in lower DAFs. The default DAF used to develop 
SL-SSLs for a 0.5 acre source may not be protective of groundwater at sites larger than 0.5 acre.” Due to 
the landfarm cells exceeding the 0.5-acre size consideration, OCD would be open to consider the use one 
of the two approaches, if applicable, recognized in Section 4.7 of the risk assessment guidance, as 
identified below: 

 
o As the size of the source area increases, the assumptions underlying the generic model are 

less applicable. One of the conservative assumptions in the generic SSL approach is the 
uniform distribution of contaminants throughout the vadose zone. There are few sites that 
have relatively uniform soil contamination (both laterally and vertically) of a single 
constituent in an area of greater than 0.5 acres (22,000 ft2). Soil contamination at large 
facilities (such as federal facilities) are usually concentrated in discrete portions of the site. 
Contamination at large sites is commonly the result of multiple sources. It is advisable to 
attempt to subdivide the facility by source and contaminant type and then apply generic SSLs 
to those smaller source areas. 

 
o If this approach is impractical, calculation of site-specific DAFs is recommended. Most of the 

parameters required for these calculations are available from routine environmental site 
investigations or can be reasonably estimated from general geologic and hydrologic studies. 

 
Complete the risk assessment and propose closure standards based upon individual site conditions that 
protect fresh water, as required of 19.15.36.15.F(5) NMAC. Provide a written justification for the use of 
the Soil Screening Levels for Residential Land Uses and the use of the cancer or non-cancer limits. Limit 
the discussion of the compliance of 19.15.36.15.F(5) NMAC to the constituents listed in Subsections A 
and B of 20.6.2.3103 NMAC determined by EPA SW-846 methods 6010B or 6020 or other methods 
approved by the division. This would include the following: antimony, arsenic, barium, beryllium, 
cadmium, chromium, copper, iron, lead, manganese, selenium, silver, thallium, uranium, and zinc all by 
EPA Method 6010B, along with mercury by EPA Method 7471. 
 
If there are any questions regarding this matter, please do not hesitate to contact me by email at 
brad.a.jones@state.nm.us.   
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
 
Brad A. Jones 
Environmental Specialist 
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Jones, Brad A., EMNRD

From: Philana Thompson <pthompson@merrion.bz>
Sent: Monday, June 1, 2020 9:26 AM
To: Jones, Brad A., EMNRD
Cc: Ryan Merrion; Ryan Davis; Shacie Murray
Subject: [EXT] URGENT Permit NM1-9-0 request for closure of Treatment Zone
Attachments: 2020-05-29 NM19 - Treatment Zone Closure Packet.pdf

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
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